
 
          Clean & Safe Board of Directors Annual Meeting  

                May 30, 2023 | In-Person 
 

 
 
 

     

    8:30 Call Meeting to Order 
• Agenda Public Comment 
• Next Board Meeting: August 15, 2023 at 8:30 am  
• Approve minutes of March 06, 2023, Board Meeting | Action 
• Approve Fiscal Year 23-24 Board Dates | Action 

 
                   Phil Rath Chairman’s Report 

• Approve Cortez Board Seat Recommendation: L.C. Cline | Action 
• Approve Columbia Board Seat Recommendation: Pete Engard | Action 
• Approve DSDP Board Seat Recommendation: Betsy Brennan | Action 
• Approve Officer Positions for Chair, Secretary, & Treasurer| Action 

 
     DSDP President/CEO: Betsy Brennan Update | Informational 

• General Program Update 
  

                   DSDP Clean & Safe Executive Director Alonso Vivas Update | Informational 
• Fiscal Year 22-23 End of Year Report  

 
                   DSDP Director of Sarah Brothers Update | Informational 

• CEP Update  
 
                  

                    Member Discussion 

• Non-Agenda Public Comment 

 

 
 
 
 
 

       Adjourn 
 

 
  Meeting Location 
  DSDP Office  
  401 B Street, Suite 100 
  San Diego, Ca 92101 
 

THIS INFORMATION IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE FORMATS UPON REQUEST. 
To request an alternative format or to request a sign language or oral interpreter for the meeting, please contact the Clean & Safe 

Program office at least five (5) working days before the meeting at (619) 234-8900 to ensure availability. Assistive Listening Devices 
(ALDs) are available for the meeting upon advanced request. 



 

Page 2 
 

Clean & Safe Board of Directors Meeting 

March 6, 2023, Meeting Minutes 

Call to Order: 

Meeting commenced at 8:34 am  

Clean & Safe Board of Directors Attendance:  

Board members present: 

• Phil Rath, Chair  
• L.C. Cline 
• Betsy Brennan 
• Steve Kohn 
• Doug Korn  
• Michael Trimble  
• Larry Seal  
• Roann Gobeil 
• Mike Madigan, Treasurer  

 
Board members not present: 

• James Langley 
• Howard Greenberg 
• Angie Webber  
• Larry Seal  
• Roann Gobeil 

 
The following DSDP staff members were present: Alonso Vivas, Charity Jones, Dani Garcia  

Agenda Public Comment: No Comment   

Motion: Approval of minutes from the January 17, 2023, Board meeting   
- 1st – Michael Trimble  
- 2nd – LC Cline   

o Motion Approved   
 
Chairman’s Report: Phil Rath  

• Approve East Village Board Seat Recommendation: Dr. John Parker | Action 
• Clean & Safe Survey Results | Informational 
• Approve FY23-24 Budget and FY23-24 Contractors | Action 

 
Motion: Approval East Village Board Seat Recommendation: Dr. John Parker   
- 1st – L.C. Cline   
- 2nd – Mike Madigan    

o Motion Approved   



 

Page 3 
 

 
 

DSDP Clean and Safe Executive Director Alonso Vivas Update | Informational 

- Review Clean & Safe Survey Results 
o A Total of 480 Surveys Completed 

 Beautification Top 3 Concerns  
• Decorative Lighting  
• Pedestrian Amenities  
• Vacant Storefront Beautification   

 Unhoused Care Services Top 3 Concerns  
• Diversion Programs 
• On-the-Ground Outreach  
• Referrals to Shelters  

 Safety Services Top 3 Concerns  
• Providing Safe Walks  
• Providing Welfare Checks  
• Conducting Overnight Patrols 

 Maintenance Services Top 3 Concerns  
• Removing Litter  
• Pressure Washing 
• Removing Illegal Dumps 

 
- Motion: Approval East Village Board Seat Recommendation: Dr. John Parker   

- 1st – Glenna Gasper   
- 2nd – Mike Madigan    
o Motion Approved   

 

 

 
Non-Agenda Public Comment: No Comment  

Adjourn: The meeting adjourned at 9:27 am  

Next meeting: June 20, 2023 

Location: 401 B Street, Suite 100, San Diego, Ca 92101 

  

 

 

 



Maintenance Statistics 

 

1,897,180 
Total pounds of 
trash collected. 
The FY23 total indicates a 24%  

increase from FY22’s total. 

43% 

Trash Cans Serviced 
equaled  

of all tasks completed 

Feces/Urine 
Removed 

13% 

Stickers  
Removed 

11% 

195,615 
Sum of all maintenance 

ac vi es done for  
FY2023 to date. 

18,164  Sidewalks 9% 

15,546 Gum 
Removed 

8% 

13,149 Graffiti  
Removed 

7% 

8,225  Illegal 4% 

4,318  Dog  
Stations 
Wiped 

2% 

3,240 Weeds 
Pulled 

2% 

1,952  Syringes 
Removed 

1% 



Safety Statistics 

 

273,132 
Total safety logs  

recorded. 
Monthly average of tasks recorded 2,7315 . 

 

46% 

Security Checks 

of all tasks completed 

Business  
Visits 

27% 
Wellness 
Checks 

13% 

Top Safety Activity Figures 

Top Service Locations 

Gaslamp 

1,030 Tickets 
88% resolved  

within 1-hr. 

East Village 

1,446 Tickets 
75% resolved  

within 1-hr. 

City Center 

1,661 Tickets 
76% resolved  

within 1-hr. 



Placemaking 

 

FY2022-2023 Placemaking Highlights 

Promoting Neighborhood Identity — August 2022 

Downtown Insider’s Guide— July 2022 

Wayfinding & Neighborhood Branding — December 2022 



Placemaking 

 

FY2022-2023 Placemaking Highlights 

Padres Activation & Joe Musgrove Mural — October 2022 

Cortez Intersection Mural — October 2022 



Placemaking 

 

FY2022-2023 Placemaking Highlights 
The Grinch Who Stole C Street — December 2022 

Live After Five —December 2022 



Placemaking 

 

FY2022-2023 Placemaking Highlights 

San Diego Black History “Pioneers of Downtown” — February 2023 

Expansion of Creative Bike Racks — January 2023 



Placemaking 

 

FY2022-2023 Placemaking Highlights 

Columbia District Parklet — March 2023 

Dogs of Downtown at Faultline Park — February 2023 



UUnhoused Care  

 

2,697 Total Unhoused Care Outreach Interactions 

0.7% 
0.1% 

5.5% 

7% 

7.2% 

79.2% 

Hotspots include: 
5th Ave 
G St. 
C St. 

Outreach Conversation 

No Services Needed 

Wellness Check 

Business Contact 

Overdose 

911 Called for Health Issues 

Provided Resources  

County 
Benefits 

0.1% 

0.07% 

 

 
Outreach Conversation 2,137 

No Service Needed 194 

Wellness Check 189 

Business Contact 147 

Overdose 20 

911 Called For Health 4 

Provided Resources 4 

County Benefits 2 



Unhoused Care - Success Stories 

 

Unhoused Care 

Monthly Activity 

Emily came to San Diego searching for a better life. Unfortunately, not long after ar-
riving Emily developed a drug habit that led to her getting HIV and being regularly 
subjected to physical violence. She became homeless in 2012. She was constantly in 
and out of shelters and programs, hoping to clean up her life but ultimately falling 
back into her drug habit. After many years of cycling through case managers and 
service providers, Emily started receiving care management from our Unhoused 

Care Team in March of 2022. This time she was determined to get her life back. After 
more than a year of care management with our team, and 11 years after initially ex-

periencing homelessness, we’re happy to share that Emily moved into her very own 
apartment in April. Emily finally has a place to call her own thanks to her resolve and 

the dedication of our team. 

2,697  A total 

outreach conversations  

occurred during FY22-

Top three locations ser-

City Center East Village Gaslamp 



In A City Beset By Homelessness, She’s A 
Firm, Quiet Consensus Builder 
Business booster and Downtown San Diego Partnership 
CEO Betsy Brennan is behind the scenes pushing the 
urban core to regroup and rebound  
BY RON DONOHO ● NEWS ● APRIL 16, 2023 

 

DSDP CEO Betsy Brennan in front of a mural in her downtown office. 

 

Scot Peters blurted out, “Who wrote this?!” 

Then he realized every staffer in his city council office assumed somebody was in big trouble. 

The year was 2002. The author in ques�on was Betsy Brennan. Today, she’s the president and 
CEO of the Downtown San Diego Partnership. The DSDP is a low-profile but highly influen�al 
nonprofit that advocates for the economic prosperity and cultural vitality of the city’s urban core. 

The Partnership’s original mission had litle to do with homelessness issues. The subject, 
however, claims a majority of Brennan’s daily calendar.  

https://thesandiegosun.com/author/ron-donoho/
https://thesandiegosun.com/news/


When Peters first yelped about Brennan’s writen work he was the District 1 San Diego City 
Councilmember. (Today he’s serving his sixth term in the U.S. House of Representa�ves, 
represen�ng California’s 50th District, which includes downtown San Diego).    

Two decades ago, Brennan was a law student studying at the University of San Diego’s Land-Use 
Clinic. She was interning for Peters, primarily focusing on his responsibili�es as a member of the 
California Coastal Commission. 

Brennan remembers that around that �me she was wri�ng lots of thank-you notes to 
cons�tuents. 

“One note was to someone in Council District 1 to acknowledge we got their leter,” she says. “It 
was long and technical. But basically, this person was angry that a neighbor had a tree over 30 
feet tall that was blocking their view. I explained how the neighbor was in compliance.” 

Turned out Peters wasn’t mad about what Brennan had writen. Quite the opposite. He was 
impressed. 

Now-Congressman Peters says it was obvious back then that Brennan was a highly competent 
analyst. And someone who was good at understanding and addressing problems. 

“She’s really good at being a listener and iden�fying areas of agreement,” Peters says. “She’s 
remarkable at being an analy�c problem solver.” 

Peters hired Brennan to be a part-�me aide while she was s�ll finishing her degree at USD. She 
went full-�me right a�er gradua�on. 

In 2005, Peters elevated Brennan to be his chief of staff. She was just 29 years old. 

The promo�on coincided with a turning point in San Diego poli�cs. The public had voted to 
convert city governance to a strong-mayor system. Peters was named the first president of the 
city council.  

“Betsy helped me invent how the council would operate under the strong-mayor system,” Peters 
says. “She had to be a really skilled nego�ator.” 

Brennan was the youngest of all the city council chiefs of staff and junior in age to most of the 
people around her. 

“It was an interes�ng situa�on,” she says with a straigh�orward smile. “I had a lot of people on 
my team who were older than me. I had been friends with them and then I had to be their boss. I 
loved it, though. I think I’m a natural boss.” 

Her leadership skills germinated early. Brennan was president of her senior class at Fairport High 
in Rochester, New York. And captain of the field hockey squad and a member of the downhill ski 
team. 



Sports tend to reward players who are loud and aggressive. Brennan appears to have maintained 
the drive of an athlete, but also exercises poise, congeniality and a natural ability to build 
consensus.     

 

 

Congressman Scot Peters raves about Brennan, his former city council chief of staff. (Photo by 
Sal Giameta) 

If you’re hooked into downtown San Diego business and poli�cal circles you’re likely familiar with 
the DSDP.  

For those fuzzy on its history, the 300-member organiza�on just celebrated its 30th anniversary. 
The Partnership was born in 1993 when a group called San Diegans Inc. merged with the Central 
City Associa�on. 

Spawned out of the San Diego Chamber of Commerce, which was regional in nature, San Diegans 
Inc. was focused on downtown redevelopment maters. Members were bankers, property 
owners and power brokers. 

The CCA was also focused on downtown. Membership primarily consisted of retailers. Its central 
goal was ge�ng foot traffic to come downtown and patronize shops and businesses. 



Then came redevelopment efforts in the Gaslamp Quarter in the 1980s. And the crea�on of the 
(now former) Horton Plaza mall. By the early ’90s it was decided that downtown’s best interest 
could be pursued if the two groups merged. 

From the beginning, The Partnership worked in tandem with a redevelopment agency called 
Centre City Development Corpora�on. They drove the crea�on of the San Diego Conven�on 
Center, Petco Park and the new Central Library.   

For the last two decades, including five-plus years under Brennan’s helm, the nonprofit DSDP has 
been the managing organiza�on of the Clean & Safe program.  

Clean & Safe is a Property and Business Improvement District. It provides enhanced maintenance 
and safety services, beau�fica�on efforts and comprehensive unhoused care services for 275 
blocks of downtown. 

The Clean & Safe program was the brainchild of former DSDP president Laurie Black, who held 
the posi�on from 1997-2001. Brennan considers Black a mentor. The two have known each other 
for decades. 

Black calls Brennan “phenomenal,” says she is “highly-respected” and has “become a part of the 
fabric of the quilt that is downtown.”  

Black also credits Brennan with bringing nonpar�sanship back to The Partnership. 

“I didn’t like the Poli�cal Ac�on Commitee that was started before Betsy,” Black says. “I felt that 
it diluted some things. Homelessness is not par�san. Potholes a�er a rain are not par�san. 
Betsy’s gone back to ‘let’s just get this job done’ and not worry about what the poli�cs are.” 



 

A Clean & Safe employee power washes an East Village sidewalk. (Courtesy of Downtown San 
Diego Partnership) 

Homelessness may no longer be a par�san issue for The Partnership, but it’s definitely an 
omnipresent one. 

“It’s an emo�onal and really complicated topic,” Brennan says. “If you had asked me five years 
ago, I would have said our mission is economic prosperity and cultural vitality. But, wow, more 
than half of my �me now is spent on homelessness.”   

As president and CEO, Brennan plays the role of advocate. Case in point: The Partnership recently 
formed a Downtown Safety Coali�on of more than two dozen prominent groups. The group 
dra�ed an 8-point leter that was sent to Mayor Todd Gloria in late 2022. 

“The leter is very specific on what we want from a safety standpoint and a quality of life 
standpoint in downtown San Diego,” Brennan says. 

A majority of the leter focuses on homelessness. In summary, the coali�on calls for:  

- Enforcement of a “no tent” policy on sidewalks. 
- Adjusted levels of city-obligated trash and sidewalk cleaning services. 
- Implementa�on of a future Safe Tent camping site. 
- San Diego Police Department walking patrols in cri�cal corridors.  
- Deployment of Behavioral Health Services and medical resource outreach. 



- Keeping known offenders of narco�cs abuses and other serious crimes in jail. 
- Advocacy for con�nued state and federal funding for programs that aid the city. 
- Addressing streetlight repairs.  

Led by District 3 City Councilmember Stephen Whitburn, poli�cal leaders currently seem 
determined to pass an aggressive ban on tents on city sidewalks. However, a similar ban already 
exists and is randomly enforced. A major flaw in crea�ng and enforcing a stricter ban: There’s a 
severe shortage of shelters for people now living on the streets. 

Note: Communica�ons representa�ves for Mayor Gloria and Councilmember Whitburn did not 
respond to requests for comment for this story.  

Coali�on groups whose leaders signed the DSDP’s leter include San Diego’s Port, Tourism 
Authority, Restaurant Associa�on, Chamber of Commerce, Building Industry Associa�on and 
Regional Economic Development Corpora�on.    

Two neighborhood groups based within the 92101 downtown ZIP Code are also signatories on 
the DSDP leter: The Gaslamp Quarter Associa�on and the East Village Residents Group. 

Kathleen Hallahan is the immediate past president of the EVRG. She served five years in the role. 

Hallahan praises Brennan’s efforts to bring consensus on downtown issues. 

“There seems to be an open-door policy since Betsy Brennan took over,” Hallahan says. “She 
seems to have energized the office. And she’s open to the idea that all the neighborhoods are 
important and that we all can be working together.” 

Hallahan believes the general public lacks an awareness of what the DSDP does. 

“Before ge�ng involved with them, my own image was that it was just for large businesses,” she 
says. “But I found they’re determined to have all aspects of downtown be synergis�c, and have a 
goal of being symbio�c.” 

That opinion is shared by John Brady, who has “lived experience” with homelessness. He’s 
currently head of Lived Experience Advisors LLC, and has been contracted in the past by DSDP to 
do research. 

“The Downtown San Diego Partnership has become a key component of the homeless response 
system,” Brady says. “The monthly count of people living on the street that they do is an 
incredible benchmark. Betsy is a solid leader. And compassionate to the issue. She has a difficult 
job to do while balancing the needs of her cons�tuents.” 

Brady adds: “It would be nice to see some people with lived experience on her boards and 
commitees.” 



 

Betsy Brennan toasts from onstage during the DSDP’s 2023 “Create The Future Awards” 
program. (Photo by Melissa Jacobs) 

Brennan and I met twice for this profile. First informally, over coffee. Then, on the record in her 
ground-floor office in downtown’s Wells Fargo Building. She was surprisingly forthright and 
direct, especially about the city’s homelessness problems. 

 

She won’t point fingers. Even in her coali�on leter to the mayor–who has received mixed public 
reviews for his handling of homelessness–she offers praise and assistance on shared challenges.  

On occasion, Brennan does fall into talking points. Rote recita�on, though, comes at a minimum. 
She’s guarded, naturally, but simultaneously engaging. Discourse with her feels refreshingly like a 
discussion. 

Her emo�ve personality might be the modern textbook example for anyone seeking to assume 
poli�cal office or run a quasi-governmental organiza�on. In a poli�cal age where compromise 
and truthfulness are rare commodi�es, Brennan seems both bipar�san and believable. 

“I think Betsy Brennan shows that you don’t have to be aggressively belligerent to be a leader,” 
Hallahan says. “Her skills are gathering informa�on and pushing for solu�ons, behind closed 
doors.” 



Hallahan reiterates that Brennan and The Partnership face challenges while working to li� up 
downtown. 

“Homelessness is not what that organiza�on was created to deal with,” Hallahan says. “But I 
think every downtown group can’t just focus on its own agenda because homelessness is 
everywhere.” 

Nonetheless, Brennan says she’s allowing herself to feel op�mis�c about homelessness and sees 
glimmers of hope for an overall upward trajectory for the city. 

“I’m not going to be a Pollyanna,” she says. “But I feel like the state of California, the city and the 
county are actually on the same page now on policies that could allow us to see some progress.” 

In addi�on, the Ins�tute of Governmental Studies recently ranked San Diego number-one among 
62 U.S. ci�es for rebounding from the pandemic. 

Local travel and tourism numbers also have solidly bounced back. The American Hotel and 
Lodging Associa�on reports that 2022 hotel revenue surpassed pre-pandemic numbers from 
2019. 

And Brennan says new faces are signing up as DSDP members, as are some former members who 
moved out of downtown but missed being part of the urban ecosystem. 

It’s all conjecture at the moment, but local officials are trying to drum up support to redevelop 
the unsightly six-block area known as the City Hall Complex. There’s no �metable yet; nobody’s 
holding their breath. 

 

Along with the homelessness conundrum, there are s�ll plenty of hurdles to ge�ng the city back 
to business. Office leasing has been slow, for example, and there are far too many empty 
storefronts all over downtown. 

“But I’m glad to be talking about this now and not six months ago, ” Brennan says. “I can be 
authen�cally op�mis�c. I really am in a much more hopeful place.” 

If you live, work or play on downtown San Diego’s tent-clustered streets on a regular basis, your 
skep�cism is acknowledged.  

You may want to shout, “Who can say this?!” 

Consider the source. It’s reliable.  SDSun 

[This story was updated on 4/17/23 to reflect the connec�on between The DSDP and Clean & 
Safe.]  In A City Beset By Homelessness, She’s A Firm, Quiet Consensus Builder – 
San Diego Sun (thesandiegosun.com) 

https://thesandiegosun.com/in-a-city-beset-by-homelessness-shes-a-firm-quiet-consensus-builder/
https://thesandiegosun.com/in-a-city-beset-by-homelessness-shes-a-firm-quiet-consensus-builder/

	2023.05.30 DRAFT Agenda
	Clean & Safe Board of Directors Annual Meeting

	03.06.2023 Draft Mins
	maintenance
	safety
	Placemaking_FY23 Recap
	Clean and Safe Report FY23 (005)
	Report_Unhoused Care_Stories_July 22 to Apr 23 (1)
	BB
	In A City Beset By Homelessness, She’s A Firm, Quiet Consensus Builder

	ADP22BD.tmp
	Clean & Safe Board of Directors Annual Meeting


